Solicitation No. NNJ09BT112R                                                                 Amendment 002


Questions Submitted in Response to:
Final RFP for the Altair Conceptual Design Contract (ACDC)
I.  The following questions have been submitted in response to the ACDC Final RFP:
Note:  (Reponses to questions 1 thru 12 were previously provided in amendment 001 to this solicitation)
13.  Question:  
Ref:  Section L, L.14.3 (e)(1), Volume III, (pg. L-21)  

Comment:  This requirement states "For those contracts cited above, records of the company's OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses shall be included.  The records typically include, for each worksite, as a minimum, one copy of each year's OSHA logs (OSHA Form 300) for these past three years as required by 29 CFR 1904.5(d) including OSHA Form 300A."  Although the requested OSHA records information can be summarized in the Past Performance Volume within the 20 page limitation, OSHA records for each worksite for the past three years will take approximately 100 pages.  Question:  Can the requested OSHA information be either summarized in the Past Performance Volume, or can the requested OSHA records be included as a separate Appendix to the Past Performance Volume and be excluded from the page count limitation? 

Answer:  The OSHA information required by provision L.14.3 (e) (1) may be summarized in the Past Performance Volume (Volume III).  The detailed information should be submitted as an appendix to Volume III and will be excluded from the page count limitation for Volume III.
14.  Question:  
Ref:  Section L, L.14.3(e)(4), Volume III, (pgs. L-21 and L-22)

Comment:  This requirement states "The offeror shall authorize the listed insurance carriers to respond to questions asked by the Government. In addition, the workers’ compensation experience modifier, including the State formula utilized for the computation, will be included along with the loss ratio for the past three years (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio of losses to premium). The experience modifier data and loss runs from insurance policies that cover the work in the contracts listed above (paragraph (a)) are to be sent to the NASA CO by letter from the broker or underwriter and included with the proposal. All figures used for computation shall be shown. Information on the liability and lawsuit history related to safety and health performance shall also be provided." This data will consume approximately 10 pages of the Past Performance Volume 20 page limit.   Question:  Can the requested information on insurance carriers be included as an appendix to the Past Performance Volume and excluded from the Volume's page count limitation?
Answer:  The insurance and workers' compensation information required by provision L.14.3 (e) (4) should be submitted as an appendix to Volume III and will be excluded from the page count limitation for this Volume.
15. Question:  
Ref:  Section M.4, (pg. M-2)

Could NASA provide any applicable new policy guidance which implemented this "integrated evaluation" approach and explain how this approach may affect point scoring of the Technical, Management, and Small Business sub-factors evaluation?
Answer:  The language in provision M.4 does not represent new JSC policy.  These words were provided to notify offerors that, although a section of the proposal instructions are identified with a particular evaluation element, data from other parts of your proposal may be evaluated for that evaluation element.  For example, one part of the the proposal requests information concerning TA1, Technical Approach to Line Items, in Volume I, Technical Approach.  However, NASA's evaluation of this element will also consider data provided in other volumes of the proposal, such as Volume V, Model Contract.
16.  Question:  
Ref:  Section J, Attachment J-6, (pg. J-6-7)
Can NASA please clarify the cycle of meetings across sites, including NASA centers and Contractor locations so that we can adequately estimate travel?

Answer:  Additional advisory information has been provided in Attachment J-6 to guide you in estimating travel expenses.  NASA is unable to provide in greater detail how travel may occur during contract performance.  The information concerning the "cycling" of co-location meetings was provided to inform offerors that at least some of the meetings will not require extensive travel, as these meetings will occasionally occur at your contractor location.
17. Question:

Ref:  Section J, Attachment J-2.
Attachment J-2, "Applicable and Reference Documents" does not call out NPR 8715.3A NASA General Safety Program Requirements. Specifically it seems that Chapter 2 and Appendix F should be of utmost importance to a manned system. Was this omission intentional or an oversight?

Answer:  NPR 8715.3A is already referenced in the Safety and Health DRD (ACDC-SA-01), therefore it should be added to the reference documents list in Attachment J-2 "Applicable and Reference Documents".
18. Question:

Ref:  Section H, H.8, (pgs. H-5 and H-6)
Contractor requests revision of Section H, provision H.8 Associate Contractor Agreements paragraph (c).  Request revision to read:  "Liability for the improper disclosure of any proprietary data contained in or referenced by any agreement shall rest with the responsible party."

Answer:  The purpose of this sentence in Clause H.8 is to defer liability from the government to the parties of any Associate Contractor Agreements.  Language such as that requested should be contained in any agreement between the associate contractors.  Clause H.8 is not revised.
19. Question:

Ref:  Section I, Clause 52.227-23, (pg. I-3)
Section I, Clause 52.227-23 Rights to Proposal Data (Technical), does not allow sufficient space to complete the fill-ins.  Is it appropriate to add the clause in full text in Section I?

Answer:   Clause 52.227-23, Rights to Proposal Data (Technical) will be added as a full text clause to Section I.
20. Question:

Ref:  Section F, F.2, (pg. F-1)
Are Offerors to assume that Planning/Tasking determination activities for the subsequent cycle are an element of current Analysis Cycle SOW and occurs in the final several/few weeks of same?

Answer:  The table in Paragraph F.2, Delivery Schedule, correctly depicts the start and end dates of each of the Analysis Cycles.  This table, with Analysis Cycle descriptions, is repeated in Attachment J-6, Table 3.  Directly above that Table on page J-6-10, it is stated that the dates shown in the table EXCLUDE the Planning Phases, which was the "overlap" of dates shown in the draft RFP.  The Planning Phase for a subsequent Analysis Cycle is to be incorporated into the work of the previous Analysis Cycle.  This is illustrated in Appendix L-4 Analysis Plan CLIN examples - the final item in each Analysis Cycle example is contractor participation in the planning for the subsequent analysis cycle.
21. Question:

Ref:  Section J, J-1, DRDs ACDC-PM-01 & 02, Section 3 (pgs. J-1-9 & J-1-12)
We request the following revision to the sentence:  "Attach a copy of the approved CLIN work plan from attachment J-8 for the program/project milestone and provide rationale for at the top level for any differences between the work planned and work completed."

Answer:  Update both the milestone DRD and the analysis cycle DRD by adding the word "summary" before rationale. The sentence will now read: "Attach a copy of the approved CLIN work plan from attachment J-8 for the program/project milestone and provide summary rationale for any differences between the work planned and work completed."
22. Question:

Ref:  Section G, G.2(a), (pg. G-1)
Is NASA willing to consider alternate payment options such as Progress Payments or Monthly Payments within each Government Fiscal Year? Can the contractor propose Progress Payments under FAR Clause 52.232-16?

Answer:  NASA is not prepared to consider Progress Payment based on cost for this contract.
II. The Final RFP sections are amended with “From/To” language in bold font as follows: 
SECTION I:

(a)  Federal Acquisition Regulation Clause 52.227-23, RIGHTS TO PROPOSAL DATA (Technical) (June 1987), is deleted from Section I.1, 52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998) on pg. I-3 and incorporated as a full text clause in this section as follows:

I.15    RIGHTS TO PROPOSAL DATA (Technical) (June 1987)
Except for data contained on pages______, it is agreed that as a condition of award of this contract, and notwithstanding the conditions of any notice appearing thereon, the Government shall have unlimited rights (as defined in the “Rights in Data—General” clause contained in this contract) in and to the technical data contained in the proposal dated _________, upon which this contract is based.

                                           (End of clause)
(b)  Section A, TABLE OF CONTENTS, is revised to include clause I.15, RIGHTS TO PROPOSAL DATA (Technical) (June 1987).

SECTION J:
(a) Attachment J-2, “APPLICABLE AND REFERENCE DOCUMENT”, added "NPR 8715.3A NASA General Safety Program Requirements" to reference documents section.

(b) Attachment J-1, DRDs (ACDC-PM-01 & 02), Section 3 Work Plan are changed:

FROM: "…and provide rationale for any differences between the work planned and work completed."

TO: "…and provide summary rationale for any differences between the work planned and work completed."
III.      No replacement pages to the solicitation are issued as part of this amendment.
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